
Page 1 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
Meeting: TIDWORTH AREA BOARD 

Place: Pheonix Hall, High St, Netheravon, SP4 9PJ 

Date: Monday 14 November 2016 

Time: 7.00 pm 

 
Including the Parishes of Chute, Chute Forest, Collingbourne Ducis, Collingbourne 
Kingston, Enford, Everleigh, Fittleton, Ludgershall, Netheravon, Tidcombe and Fosbury, 
and Tidworth. 
 

 
The Area Board welcomes and invites contributions from members of the public. 
The chairman will try to ensure that everyone who wishes to speak will have the 

opportunity to do so. 
 

   If you have any requirements that would make your attendance at the meeting easier, 
please contact your Democratic Services Officer. 

 
Networking opportunities will be available from 6:30pm.  

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Kevin Fielding (Democratic Services 
Officer), on 01249 706612 or email kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
All the papers connected with this meeting are available on the Council’s website at 
www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114 / 713115. 
 

 
Wiltshire Councillors 

 
Chris Williams  (Chairman) Ludgershall and Perham Down 

Mark Connolly  (Vice Chairman) Tidworth 

Charles Howard 
 

The Collingbournes and Netheravon 
 

 
 

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 

 

 

RECORDING AND BROADCASTING NOTIFICATION 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 

Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv.  At the start of the meeting, the 

Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and 

sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council. 

 

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 

those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes. 

 

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public. 

  

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 

Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 

from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 

accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 

relation to any such claims or liabilities. 

 

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 

available on the Council’s website along with this agenda and available on request. 

If you have any queries please contact Democratic Services using the contact details 

above. 

http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/


Page 3 

 

Items to be considered Time 

  

1   Chairman's Welcome, Introductions and Announcements  
 
Announcements: 
 

 Wonderful things: Finds from the Army Basing Programme. 
 

5 mins 

2   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

3   Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or 
dispensations granted by the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4   Minutes (Pages 1 - 10)  

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on Monday 19 
September 2016. 
 

 

5   Wiltshire Police update (Pages 11 - 14) 5 mins 

  Inspector Nick Mawson – Wiltshire Police. 
 

 

6   Health Talk  15 mins 

 Alison Timmins - Health Trainer. 
 

 

7   Recycle for Wiltshire Tidworth Community Area Project - 
update  

5 mins 

 Jessica Thimbleby. 
 

 

8   Updates From Tidworth Community Area Partnership  15 mins 

  Economic & Built Environment Group 

 
 Neighbourhood Tasking Group 

 

 Health & Wellbeing Group including Older Person & Carers 
Champion 

 
 

 



Page 4 

 

 
 
 

9   Community Engagement Manager - updates including Local 
Youth Network & Youth Funding (Pages 15 - 30) 

15 mins 

 Marc Read – Community Engagement Manager. 
 

 

10   Community Area Transport Group update (Pages 31 - 38) 5 mins 

 Cllr Mark Connolly. 
 

 

11   Community Area Grants (Pages 39 - 60) 20 mins 

 To determine any applications for Community Area Grants. 
 
Grant application packs for the Community Area Grants Scheme 
are available from the Community Area Manager or electronically 
at: 
 
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/areaboards/areabo
a 
rdscommunitygrantsscheme.htm. 
 

 

12   Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Police, the 
Army, NHS and other Partners (Pages 61 - 72) 

20 mins 

 To receive any updates. 
 

 

13   Date of Next Meeting   

 The next meeting of the Tidworth Area Board will be on Monday 
16 January 2017. 
 

 

14   Close   

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



  Wonderful Things: Finds from the Army 

Basing Programme 

We invite you to a presentation by archaeologists leading the 

excavations at Tidworth, Bulford and Larkhill. Exciting finds   

under the new Army housing are changing how we look at the 

Past, from before Stonehenge to World War One 

WHERE: TIDWORTH GARRISON THEATRE, SP9 7PD  

WHEN: THURSDAY 8TH DECEMBER 2016 

WHAT TIME: DOORS OPEN 1800                                             

                  PRESENTATION STARTS 1830                          

                  Q&A SESSION 2030 - 2130 

STALLS WILL BE OPEN FROM 1800 WITH A RANGE OF   

FINDS FROM THE SITES 

   ALL WELCOME TO THIS FREE EVENT!   

 

   

 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1





Page 1 of 9 
 
 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

 
Meeting: TIDWORTH AREA BOARD 

Place: Wellington Academy, Tidworth Rd, Tidworth, Wiltshire SP11 9RR 

Date:  19 September 2016 

Start Time: 7.00 pm 

Finish Time: 9.05 pm 

 

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to:  

Kevin Fielding (Democratic Services Officer), Tel: 01249 706612 or (e-mail) 
kevin.fielding@wiltshire.gov.uk 

Papers available on the Council’s website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
In Attendance: 
 
Wiltshire Councillors 
Cllr Christopher Williams (Chairman), Cllr Charles Howard and Cllr Mark Connolly 
(Vice Chairman) 
 
Wiltshire Council Officers 
Marc Read – Community Engagement Manager (CEM) 
Kevin Fielding – Democratic Services Officer 
 
Town and Parish Councillors 
Collingbourne Ducis Parish Council – P.Knowlson & Keith Cockerton 
Collingbourne Kingston Parish Council – G.Anderson & Nigel Braybrook 
Everleigh Parish Council – Denis Bottomley 
Ludgershall Town Council – Owen White 
Fittleton Parish Council – Mary Towle & Alan Wood  
Netheravon Parish Council – Ian Blair-Pilling 
Tidworth Town Council – Brian Pratt, Ann Birch, Humph Jones & E.O’Connell 
 
Partners 
Wiltshire Police – Inspector Nick Mawson 
Wiltshire Police & Crime Commissioner – Angus Macpherson 
Tidworth Garrison – Col Steve Lawton 
Tidworth Community Area Partnership – Tony Pickernell & Reia Jones 
Healthwatch Wiltshire – Paul Lefever  
Tesco Food Share - Laura Kitchener-Pain                           Total in attendance: 48 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


Page 2 of 9 
 
 

 

Agenda 
Item No. 

Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision 

1   Chairman's Welcome, Introductions and Announcements 

 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Tidworth Area Board. 
 
The following Chairman’s Announcements were noted: 
 

 Mental Health Awareness Raising. 
 

 Helping Wiltshire Council meet the challenges ahead. 
 

2   Apologies for Absence 

 Apologies for absence were received from Carolyn Wall – Chute & Chute Forest 
Parish Councils. 
 

3   Declarations of Interest 

 There were none. 
 

4   Minutes 

 Decision 
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on Monday 18 July were agreed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

5   New Policing Model 

 Inspector Nick Mawson – Wiltshire Police introduced a short film which outlined 
Wiltshire Police’s new policing model. 
 
Points made by Inspector Mawson included: 
 

 That Wiltshire Police couldn’t continue to provide its current level of 
policing without doing some serious thinking on how it was able to 
provide good community policing during this period of austerity. 

 

 The need to put victims of crime and witnesses first. 
 

 Less handovers of ownership of a crime/incident – less officers/admin 
staff dealing with an incident. 

Page 4



Page 3 of 9 
 
 

 

 Victims of crime being better informed of developments re their incident. 
 

 To change the dialogue – listen more to people. 
 

 The desire to re-design the way Wiltshire police worked – to move away 
from a rigid, one dimensional way of working. 
 

 Putting the right people in the right place. 
 

 That rural areas would see a better service – higher police visibility. 
 

 Officers working in the community, working from Libraries, high Street 
cafes using new technology to keep them out on the beat rather than 
shackled to a police station. 
 

 
Questions raised from the floor: 

 
Would the Neighbourhood Tasking Group meetings continue to be held? 
a.Yes, most definitely. 
 
Inspector Mawson advised that he would to attend the Tidworth Area Board if 
operational commitments allowed. 
 
The Chairman thanked Inspector Mawson for his presentation and looked 
forward to seeing him at future Area Board meetings. 
 

6   Dementia Action Alliance - Tidworth Community Area Launch 

 Sheila Ashley – Alzheimer’s Support and Brian Pratt – Dementia Steering Group 
Chair gave a short presentation on the Dementia Action Alliance - Tidworth 
Community Area Launch. 
 
Points made included: 
 

 That the UK had a growing population and as our population ages, we 
would all know someone living with dementia and it is important that we 
support them to remain an active and valued part of the community.  

 

 That Tidworth had now become part of the DAA by forming its own local 
alliance and were the second community in Wiltshire to do so.  

 
Overall Aims 
 

• Respect and enjoyment. 
 

Page 5



Page 4 of 9 
 
 

• Awareness raising. 
 

• Providing services and activities. 
 

• Create a dementia friendly community.  
 
The Chairman thanked Sheila Ashley and Brian Pratt for their presentation. 
 

7   Recycle for Wiltshire Tidworth Community Area Project - update 

 Jessica Thimbleby - Wiltshire Wildlife Trust gave a brief update on the Recycle 
for Wiltshire Tidworth Community Area Project which aimed to educate and 
encourage school children and communities throughout Wiltshire  
to reduce, reuse and recycle more of their household rubbish.    
 
Points made included: 
 

 That the project had been ongoing since April 2016. 
 

 That several family sessions had been held in the Tidworth community 
area. 
 

 That a scrap sculpture had been created which had been named “the 
Tidworth Drummer” 
 

 That the project continued to work with youth and community groups in 
the area. 
 

The Chairman thanked Jessica Thimbleby for her update. 
 

8   Updates From Tidworth Community Area Partnership Thematic Groups 

 Economic & Built Environment Group – Col Steve Lawton 
 

 That Col would be attending future Area Board agenda setting meetings. 
 

 That the group would next meet on Thursday 1 December 2016, and that 
a Chairman was being sought to lead the group. 

 
 
Neighbourhood Tasking – Cllr Chris Williams 
 

 That the group would next meet on Thursday 22 September 2016 at 
Tidworth Police station. 

 
 

Page 6



Page 5 of 9 
 
 

Health & Wellbeing Group Group – Riea Jones 
 

 That the group was now up and running. 
 

 That the group had met with the Director and CEO of the Wiltshire 
Ambulance Service, to highlight the issues in the Tidworth community 
area. 
 

 That the next meeting would be held during January 2017. 
 
 
Older Person & Carers Champion – Tony Pickernell 
 

 Currently visiting older people in their homes. 
 

 Concerns re the state of many of the pavements throughout the Tidworth 
community area. 
 

 Looking to organise entertainment sessions in the rural communities – 
organist and sing along sessions for older people in local care homes etc. 
 

The Chairman thanked everybody for their updates. 
 

9   Community Engagement Manager - updates including Local Youth Network & 
Youth Funding 

 Marc Read - Tidworth Community Engagement Manager advised that: 
 

 The 8 week activity challenge took place from 4 June – 29 July 2016. 
 

 A total of 18,211 people signed up from across the county. 
 

 This was made up of 2,497 individuals, 180 teams and 47 schools. 
 

 In total participants ran, walked, swam or cycled 779,742kms, which is 
the distance to the moon and back! 

 

 There were a total of 143 individual participants from Tidworth 
Community Area, as well as 2 schools, who travelled a combined 
distance of 57,420kms or one and half times around the world. 
 

 Tidworth Community Area finished 6th out of the 18 Community Area’s 
 

 Tidworth’s B-Fit Bootcamp were the first team in Wiltshire to complete the 
team challenge and covered an incredible 23,823km!  
 

 Garrison HQ Chaingang also took gold in the team challenge covered 

Page 7



Page 6 of 9 
 
 

9,600km. 
 

 Ludgershall Lovelies took a bronze medal travelling 5,343km. 
 
The Chairman thanked Marc Read for his presentation and for encouraging 
community groups and residents to participate. Those who had taken part in the 
challenge were also thanked and congratulated on their achievements and for 
producing a fantastic result for the Tidworth community area. 
 
 
Local Youth Network 
 
The Wellington Academy Heroes 
 

 That the Wellington Heroes run collaborative, interactive and educational 
workshops as well as delivering unique and inspirational sessions which 
aim to develop the personal and socials skills of young people. Working 
closely with the Social Enterprise Company Humanutopia, they deliver 
sessions to students in the academy and in the local cluster of schools. 

 
 
Youth Funding 
 
The Area Board members considered one application for youth funding: 
 
Decision 
WYAP awarded £2748.00 for Tidworth WYAP Dance Group. 
 
It was noted that £18,000 awarded to the Tidworth Youth Group for St 
Andrew’s Hall had now been returned to the Area Board as the project had 
been withdrawn. 
 
The Chairman thanked Marc Read for his update. 
 

10   Community Area Transport Group update 

 Cllr Mark Connolly advised that there were no schemes requiring Area Board 
approval to fund. 
 
The Chairman thanked Cllr Connolly for his update. 
 

11   Delegation to Community Engagement Manager 

 Wiltshire Area Boards had previously delegated authority to officers to grant 
funding from their delegated community and youth budgets in respect of urgent 
matters that may arise between meetings of the Area Board. It was proposed 
that this delegation was updated and extended to cover health and wellbeing 

Page 8



Page 7 of 9 
 
 

projects. 
 
Decision 
 

 That the Tidworth  Area Board agreed that In order to expedite the 
work of the Area Board and to deal with urgent matters that may 
arise between meetings, the Community Engagement Manager, in 
consultation with the Chairman (or in their absence, the Vice- 
Chairman) of the Area Board, may authorise expenditure to support 
community projects from the delegated community grants budget of 
up to £1,000 in total, youth projects of up to £5,000 in total, and 
health and wellbeing projects of up to £1,000 in total, between 
meetings of the Area Board. 

 

 Decisions taken between meetings would be reported to the next 
meeting of the Area Board explaining why the matter was 
considered urgent or necessary to expedite the work of the Board 
and the Cabinet Member for Communities, Campuses, Area Boards 
and Broadband would also be kept informed of any such decisions. 
 

12   Community Area Grants 

 The Area board members considered three applications for grant funding: 
 
Decision 
Home-Start Kennet awarded £940 for Child Health Issues - Prevention and 
Action. 
Reason 
The application meets grant criteria 2016/17 
 
Decision 
St Andrews & Jammie Dodgers awarded £1,422.46 for Development of 
under twos nursery. 
Reason 
The application meets grant criteria 2016/17 
 
Decision 
Avon Small Saints PreSchool awarded £1,000 for Avon Small Saints Pre-
school furniture. 
Reason 
The application meets grant criteria 2016/17 
 

13   Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Police, the Army, NHS, TCAP and 
other Partners 

 NHS Wiltshire 
 

Page 9



Page 8 of 9 
 
 

The written report was noted. 
 
 
Healthwatch Wiltshire – Paul Lefever 
 
The written report was noted. 
 
 
Army Rebasing 
 
The written report was noted 
 
 
Ludgershall Town Council – Owen White 
 

 That Mr Ken Beard was to receive the freedom of the town of 
Ludgershall. 
 

 That Planning for this year’s Remembrance service was ongoing. 
 

 That work continued with Andover Town Council re the railway project. 
 
 
Tidworth Town Council – Brian Pratt 
 

 That plans were coming together for this year’s Christmas celebrations in 
the town. 

 

 That Tidworth would have its new war memorial in place for this 
November’s Remembrance event. 

 
 
Collingbourne Ducis Parish Council 
 

That a Christmas brunch was being planned, funded by local 
Collingbourne Ducis businesses. 

 
 
Collingbourne Kingston 
 

 That Collingbourne Kingston were seeking a Parish Clerk. 
 
 
Everleigh Parish Council – Denis Bottomley 
 
The written report was noted. 
 
 

Page 10



Page 9 of 9 
 
 

Netheravon Parish Council – Ian Blair-Pilling 
 

 That there had been several incidents of vandalism using weed killer, this 
had been reported to local the NPT. Thanks to Wiltshire Police for their 
hard work in dealing with this issue. 

 
 
Tesco Food Share – Laura Kitchener-Pain 
 

 That Tesco were still looking for groups to sign up to the scheme. 
 
 
Tidworth Garrison – Col Steve Lawton 
 

 Work ongoing on the Ashdown housing development. 
 

 That the Tidworth Leisure Centre had reviewed its programme to give 
both Service and civilian users better use of the facilities. 
 
 

Mr Derek Booth raised the issue of vehicles speeding through Collingbourne 
Ducis. Inspector Nick Mawson advised that he would look at the issue. 
 
The Chairman thanked everybody for their updates. 
 

14   Date of Next Meeting 

 The next meeting of the Tidworth Area Board will be on Monday 14 November at 
the Phoenix Hall, Netheravon. 
 

15   Close 
 

Page 11





Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 1 

            
            
          
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. East Community Policing Team 
 

Sector Head: Inspector Nick Mawson 
 
Sector Deputy: Sergeant Mark Andrews 
 
Community Coordinator: PC Lucy Wileman 

 
Tidworth  PCSO: Pcso Natalie Cleife 
Ludgershall PCSO :  Pcso Maria Downham 
 

 
The Community Policing Team (CPT) model commenced in this area on 17 October 
2016 and was followed by Swindon on 7 November 2016. 
 
This follows a successful trial of the new model in Trowbridge, Warminster, Bradford 
on Avon, Westbury, Tisbury and Mere. 
 
CPT combines Neighbourhood Policing, Response teams and Local Crime 
Investigators so there is a “one team” approach to community policing. It means 
there is a bigger team of officers and police staff available to attend incidents and 
improves communication between teams and departments. It gives the public a 
better service because issues can potentially be resolved at the first point of contact 
(101 and 999 call-takers) and provides them with a named officer/police staff 
member who they will be able to keep in touch with during the investigation. It also 
encourages officers and staff to take more “ownership” of cases. 
 
There are seven Community Policing Teams: Swindon North, Swindon West, 
Swindon South, Wiltshire North, Wiltshire West, Wiltshire East and Wiltshire South. 
Tidworth comes under Wiltshire East area. 
 
Each Community Policing Team is overseen by a Superintendent and has an 
Inspector and a Deputy. The team is made up of a mix of police officers, community 
co-ordinators, PCSOs, civilian local crime investigators and Specials. 
 
We will be engaging with the public as the roll-out progresses and will welcome 
feedback about the new model. Please speak to your local officers to find out more 
about how Community Policing is affecting your local area. You can also find out 
more, including videos and infographics explaining the new model, on our website 
http://www.wiltshire.police.uk/information/community-policing-pilot 
 
Our free Community Messaging service will also help keep you updated about 
policing and crime in your local area https://www.wiltsmessaging.co.uk/ 

Tidworth Area Board 
 

October 2016 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 2 

 
 
2. CPTs - Current Priorities & Consultation Opportunities: 

 
There is only one current priority for the Tidworth/Ludgershall Area: Increased patrols 
have been requested for Dewey’s Lane in particular Jubilee Gardens and also the 
grounds of Ludgershall Castle. Our aim is to deter any ASB and if youths are located 
at these location causing issues, their full details will be recorded and  appropriate 
actions will be taken. Officers have been directed to parol these locations between 
18.00 – 23.00. 12 additional patrols have taken place in these areas so far. 
 
We will access how this is going by visiting local residents in a few weeks time, our 
findings will be sent to the local Councillors. Agency Working with the Public 
Protection Department will also take place with some local crime surveys. 
 
Your local PCSO’s have been asked to come up with dates and venues for 
Consultations and these will be published shortly. 
 
 

3. Wiltshire Police Control strategy 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 3 

 
Cybercrime 
 
There have been no reported instances of cybercrime since the last meeting.  
 
 
Domestic Abuse  
 
Amesbury CPT continue to be involved in pro-active engagement. There has been 
10 reported incients of Domestic Violence in Ludgershall & Tidworth.   
 
 
 
High Risk Offenders 
 
The CPT continue to work closely with the Public Protection Department to identify 
persistent or dangerous offenders, to engage with them and to take positive action 
where required.    
 
 
Other local crimes 
 
Ludgershall Area- 20 Crimes recorded 
 
01/10/2016 Attempted break into a garden shed, believed suspects were disturbed 
- Saunders Meadow. Collingbourne Ducis 
 
04/10/2016 Attempted break into a garage, nothing stolen - Ham Close, Aughton 
 
04/10/2016   Attempted break into the Cycle Central - High Street, Ludgersahll. 
 
09/10/2016  Burglary at Ludgershall Fast Food & Mughal Tandoori 
 
09/10/2016 Theft from changing room - Enford Village Hall 
 
10/10/2016 Possibly Hare Coursing - BB Tank Crossing A342 
 
12/10/2016 Hare Coursing - Waglands Farm Brunton 
 
Tidworth Area  - 23 Crimes recorded 
 
 
03/10/2016 Theft from Horse Boxes - Home Farm (Bridles stolen) 
 
04/10/2016 Theft of number plates – Ashdown Terrace 
 
04/10/2016 Thefts from building site Bloor Homes - Pennings Road 
 
07/10/2016 Criminal Damage to Motor Vehicle - Perham Down 
 
07/10/2016 Theft from Motor Vehicle – Perham Down (valuables) 

Page 15



Wiltshire Police - 170 years of public service 4 

 
15/10/2016 Two youths spraying grease on the side of buildings, both dealt with by 
way of Community Resolution. 
 
25/10/2016 Small fire in bike shed at Westbury House, Wyle Road 
 
31/10/2016 Theft of Wing mirror from Motor Vehicle- Sidbury Circular Road 
 
22/10/2016 ASB at Tidworth Service Station, suspect has been indentified and will 
be dealt with through Multi Agency Work 
 
 
 
 
 
Nick Mawson 
Sector Inspector,  
Wiltshire East CPT 

Page 16



LYN Grant Recommendations Repot Version 1.0   30th April 2015 

 

 

 
 

Report to Tidworth Area Board 

Date of meeting 14th November 

Title of report Youth Grant Funding 

 
Purpose of the Report: 
To consider the applications for funding listed below together with the recommendations of the 
Local Youth Network (LYN) Management Group. 
 

 

Applicant Amount requested LYN Management Group 
recommendation 

T2a Alternative Sports 
Club 

£5000 Accept 

Wellington Academy 
DofE Club 

£3148.94 Accept 

 
 

1. Background 
  The recommendation from the LYN Management Group has been made in accordance with 

the following guidelines: 
 

 Leaders guidance for Community Area Boards on Positive Activities for Young People 

 Positive Activities for Young People local Youth Network Terms of Reference 

 Positive Activities Toolkit for Community Area Boards 
 
 Young people have considered this application and identified it as a priority for Area Board 

funding.   
 

2. Main Considerations 
 
2.1. Councillors will need to be satisfied that Youth Grant Funding awarded in the 2016/2017 year 

are made to projects that can realistically proceed within a year of it being awarded. 
 
2.2. Councillors will need to decide and be assured that young people and the community will 

benefit from the funding being awarded and the project/positive activity proceeding. The 
application should meet the identified needs, priorities and outcomes for young people in the 
areas, as identified in the LYN Needs Assessment and Strategic Plan. 

 
2.3. Councillors will need to ensure measures have been taken in relation to safeguarding 

children and young people. 
 
2.4. Councillors will need to ensure that young people have been central to each stage of this 

Youth Grant Funding application. 
 

3. Environmental & Community Implications 
  Youth Grant Funding will contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of cultural, social 

and community activity and wellbeing in the community area, the extent of which will be 
dependent upon the individual project. 

 

4. Financial Implications 
Financial provision had been made to cover this expenditure 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



LYN Grant Recommendations Repot Version 1.0   30th April 2015 

 

 
4.1. Tidworth Area Board was allocated £37060 (including rollover from previous year) 

 
4.2. The Tidworth Area Board Youth Funding balance for 2016/17 is £33,507.08 

 
4.3. All decisions must fall within the Youth Funding allocated to Tidworth Area Board. 

4.4  If funding is awarded in line with the LYN recommendations outlined in this report 
Tidworth Area Board will have a Youth Funding balance of £25,358.14 

 
 

1. Legal Implications 
 There are no specific legal implications related to this report. 
 

2. Human Resources Implications 
 There are no specific human resources implications related to this report. 
 

3. Equality and Inclusion Implications 
Ensuring that Community Area Boards and LYNs fully consider the equality impacts of their 
decisions in designing local positive activities for young people is essential to meeting the 
Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty. 

 

4. Safeguarding Implications 
The Area Board has ensured that the necessary policies and procedures are in place to 
safeguard children and young people. The Community Youth Officer has assessed this 
application agreed it meets safeguarding requirements. 
 

5. Applications for consideration 
 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

ID 337  
 

T2a Alternative 
Sports Club 

Multisport Sessions  £5000 

Project description 
 
T2a Alternative Sports Club are a constituted group offering affordable multisports sessions for young 

people on a weekly basis in Tidworth for both military and civilian young people which is run by 

volunteers the young people Community Development Worker and coaches. We were in partnership 

with Wiltshire Council who helped to pay for coaching and advertising costs. Unfortunately Wiltshire 

council have had to withdraw their support to T2a due to government cuts. T2a have scaled back on 

opportunities offered to our young people such as climbing outward bound day trips out and residentials 

to try and keep the club sustainable. We have also had to increase weekly fees. We have about 6 months 

of funding left to offer the basic one day a week multisports sessions but would like to offer more for our 

young people in the future as we did in the past. We have in kind access to a sports hall and AWS 

Community Development Worker to organise residentials and day outward bound trips and volunteers. 

We would like to apply for some funding to provide extra alternative sessions and residentials to benefit 

the young people in Tidworth and surrounding villages. 
 

Recommendation of the Local Youth Network Management Group 
 
That the application meets the grant criteria and is approved for the amount of £5000. 
 
 

 
 

Page 18

http://portal.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboard_grants/yp_pa_grant_detail.php?gid=337


LYN Grant Recommendations Repot Version 1.0   30th April 2015 

 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

ID 340 
 

Wellington Academy 
DofE Club 

Expand DofE 
programme 

£3148.94 

Project description 
 
The Academy requires funding to help run the expanding DofE programme. This includes the 
750 registration fee required by Wiltshire CC. We also need equipment to match the increasing 
number of young people registering for the scheme in the Academy up to 30 this year such as 
10 ruck-sacks and new camping stoves to replace existing sub-optimal equipment. This 
equipment will also be used to support other outdoor education.  
 

Recommendation of the Local Youth Network Management Group 
That the application meets the grant criteria and is approved for the amount of £3148.94 
 
 

 
 
No unpublished documents have been relied upon in the preparation of this report 

 
Report Author Name, Marc Read – Community Engagement Manager 

Email: marc.read@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 19

http://portal.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboard_grants/yp_pa_grant_detail.php?gid=340




LYN Procurement Youth Funding Recommendations Report Version 1.0   20th May 2015 

 

 

 
 

Report to Tidworth Area Board 

Date of meeting 14th November 2016 

Title of report Youth Funding Procurement of PAYP providers 

 
Purpose of the Report: 
To consider the listed procurement purchases of positive activity providers; using youth 
funding, as detailed below, together with the recommendations of the Local Youth Network 
(LYN) Management Group. 
 

 

PAYP Provider Amount requested LYN Management Group 
recommendation 

Splash  £7777 Accept 

 
 

1. Background 
  The recommendations from the LYN Management Group has been made in accordance with 

the following guidelines: 
 

 Leaders guidance for Community Area Boards on Positive Activities for Young People 

 Positive Activities for Young People local Youth Network Terms of Reference 

 Positive Activities Toolkit for Community Area Boards 

 Procurement Policies and Guidelines http://thewire.wiltshire.council/index/service-areas-
carolyn-godfrey/business-services-procurement/procurement-policies-and-guidance.htm 
 

Young people have considered these and identified them as a priority for Area Board funding.   
 

2. Main Considerations 
 
2.1. Councillors will need to be satisfied that Youth Funding awarded in the 2015/2016 year are 

made to projects that can realistically proceed within a year of it being awarded. 
 
2.2. Councillors will need to decide and be assured that young people and the community will 

benefit from the funding being awarded and the project/positive activity proceeding. The 
application should meet the identified needs, priorities and outcomes for young people in the 
areas, as identified in the LYN Needs Assessment and Strategic Plan. 

 
2.3. Councillors will need to ensure measures have been taken in relation to safeguarding 

children and young people. 
 
2.4. Councillors will need to ensure that young people have been central to each stage of this 

Youth Funding procurement process, through the Local Youth Network Management Group. 
 

2.5. Councillors will need to be satisfied that procurement policies and guidelines have been 
adhered to. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 21

http://thewire.wiltshire.council/index/service-areas-carolyn-godfrey/business-services-procurement/procurement-policies-and-guidance.htm
http://thewire.wiltshire.council/index/service-areas-carolyn-godfrey/business-services-procurement/procurement-policies-and-guidance.htm


LYN Procurement Youth Funding Recommendations Report Version 1.0   20th May 2015 

 

3. Environmental & Community Implications 
  Youth Funding will contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of cultural, social and 

community activity and wellbeing in the community area, the extent of which will be 
dependent upon the individual project. 

 

4. Financial Implications 
Financial provision had been made to cover this expenditure. 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 There are no specific legal implications related to this report. 
 

6. Human Resources Implications 
 There are no specific human resources implications related to this report. 
 

7. Equality and Inclusion Implications 
Ensuring that Community Area Boards and LYNs fully consider the equality impacts of their 
decisions in designing local positive activities for young people is essential to meeting the 
Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty. 

 

8. Safeguarding Implications 
Wiltshire Council has ensured that the necessary policies and procedures are in place; 
through its’ procurement process, to safeguard children and young people. However, the 
Area Board needs to be satisfied that the providers being procured have everything 
necessary in place. The Community Youth Officer has assessed this and agreed providers 
meet safeguarding requirements. 
 

9. Procurement of PAYP for consideration 
 

Procurement 
purchase ID 

Provider Project Proposal Requested 

Procurement purchase 
ID number  

Splash  Activities  £7777 

Provider (details of the PAYP provider) 
 
Splash 
 
Positive activity description 
 
A 12 month programme of activities which will include but is not restricted to Forestry, 
Animation & Multi Sports.for disadvantaged young people in the Tidworth Community Area  
 
Explanation why chosen this supplier 
 
This provider has been selected because no other providers on the Wiltshire Council 
procurement catalogue can provide the full breadth of activities that Splash can offer. 
 
 

Recommendation of the Local Youth Network Management Group, with any conditions 
   
That this procurement purchase of a PAYP meets the youth funding criteria, meets the needs 
of young people identified in the recent needs assessment, relates directly to the JSA and is 
approved for the amount of £7777 with the condition that a minimum 142 young people are 
engaged into the project and that updates are produced on a 6 weekly basis in line with 
Tidworth Area Board dates and that a final report is produced at the end of the project. 

Page 22



LYN Procurement Youth Funding Recommendations Report Version 1.0   20th May 2015 

 

 
Background documents used in the publication of this report: 
 

 Splash Overview for Tidworth Area Board 

 Tidworth Area Board Proposal Costings 
 

Report Author Name, Marc Read – Community Engagement Manager 
Email: marc.read@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 

Page 23





 

Splash Overview for Tidworth LYN 
 

Having been established by Wiltshire Police in 1989 to divert young people from anti-social 

behaviour the decision was made in 2014 for Splash to move from the management of the police to 

Community First, a Wiltshire charity focussed on helping to improve the quality of life and economic 

well-being of people and local communities throughout Wiltshire and Swindon.  Splash falls within 

the youth arm of the Community First charity, known as Youth Action Wiltshire.  The full merger 

between Splash and Community First was finalised in April 2016. The merger has enabled Splash to 

evolve and to support a much broader range of young people in Wiltshire who are finding life tough.  

Splash now encompasses young people facing a wide range of challenges in life, for example those 

with special educational needs or disabilities, on child protection plans, in care, at risk of anti-social 

behaviour, young carers, victims of crime/bullying, or from families facing bereavement, breakdown 

or financial hardship.  We work hard to engage families from military and civilian communities and 

from some of the most rural areas of the county to really make Splash accessible to all.  Splash 

provides specifically designed and highly structured out of school activities for around 250 young 

people aged 9-16 in Wiltshire. 

The Splash programme gives young people the opportunity to experience new, challenging, positive 

activities during school holidays.  The focus of Splash activities is to work with providers to increase 

participants’ self-esteem, self-confidence, communication skills and leadership skills.  Experiential, 

hands-on learning sessions provide an excellent environment for young people to express 

themselves and learn from one another.  Splash and our partners provide positive role models who 

listen, encourage, mentor and coach the young people.  This positive interaction raises aspirations 

and self-belief and helps the young people to identify a positive future for themselves. 

Our excellent Youth Support Workers support, encourage and challenge the young people before, 

during and after activities as appropriate.  Often the young people do not know each other 

beforehand and it is rewarding and beneficial for them when they develop new, positive friendships.  

Securing a place on a Splash project gives a young person something to look forward to, plan for and 

something to enjoy. 

Splash is adaptable and can therefore work to specific locally identified issues such as healthy living, 

peer on peer bullying, military/civilian cohesion, rural isolation. We can deliver projects both locally 

and further afield to give young people the opportunity to experience opportunities on their 

doorstep and by offering further challenges by taking them to activity venues across the county.   

Many of our project days take place outdoors in the natural environment which not only can provide 

a new experience for those attending but can relax and calm young people whilst giving them the 

opportunity to learn new skills, uncover new interests and really flourish.  For those that perhaps 

prefer an indoor environment we offer music and animation activities which use computer 

technology and tap into the young people’s imaginations and creative sides whilst also focussing on 

team work, communication and social skills.  

 

 

 

Page 25



 

 

 

Projects Statistics 2015-16 
Days of projects delivered:   79      

Number project places attended:  893 

Average % places oversubscribed:  47% 

 

Evaluation 
We carry out 6 monthly parent/referrer feedback surveys in a bid to ensure that our project days 

continue to successfully impact on those young people engaging with Splash.  The results of the 

September 2016 survey returns recorded increases as follows: 

Self-esteem - feeling of pride and self worth 88% 

Self-confidence - belief in themselves and their abilities 91% 

Attitude & behaviour - towards you & others 81% 

Knowledge - level of learning 82% 

Social skills - communication & interaction with 
yourself & others 

79% 

 

 

 

Funding 
100% of Splash delivery costs are funded from non-statutory sources - grants from trusts and 

foundations, businesses, local organisations and fundraising events. 

 

Proposed Activity Programme for Tidworth Area 
We have successfully piloted a number of different projects with our partners over the past 3 years 
and have selected the most popular for the Tidworth LYN to consider: 
 
Wiltshire Wildlife Trust deliver the hugely popular 'Forestry Days'.  
Each day has a different theme but all relate to conservation, 
preservation and the environment.  These flexible and dynamic 
sessions can include building and safely lighting camp fires, tree 
climbing, pond dipping, shelter building, foraging and team tracking 
games.  The multitude of wildlife at each of the reserves gives young 
people a real opportunity to experience and enjoy the great outdoors.  
WWT have several reserves in the East and South of the county. 
 
 
 

“Thank you for helping me in 

your Splash projects. Over 

the last 3 years, quite a lot of 

my decisions have been 

made or altered because of 

Splash. Splash is an amazing 

charity that helps many 

people like me overcome the 

many challenges in life. 

Again thank you.“  

12 yr old girl 

 

Page 26



 

Wiltshire Outdoor Learning Team (WOLT) deliver a number of 
outdoor activities for us including 'Catch It, Cook It, Eat It' and 
“Wet N Wild”.  Both of these activities involve using the most 
basic items to build the appropriate equipment to complete the 
task.  For Catch it Cook it Eat it this means building a fishing rod 
from a bamboo cane, a short length of fishing twine, a hook and 
float.  The young people then set to work to catch a fish. They 
then move on to build a fire, gut and fillet a fish and then have a 
taste of that fish.  For the” Wet N Wild” sessions young people 

have the opportunity to use raw materials to make a floating raft.  Once built they then face the 
challenge of paddling and steering it on the River Avon, will it float or sink?   
 
WOLT also deliver our High ropes and Mountain biking sessions.  High Ropes includes climbing, 
abseiling, zip wiring and swinging through the treetops at Brokerswood with Mountain biking an 
option at a number of locations.  Each of these sessions are fun and challenging and provide the 
perfect opportunity to develop team working, communication and leadership skills, trust, 
celebration and empathy. 
 
 

Our partnership with Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue 
Service enables us to run 5 day Salamander courses – a 
project already well-established within the Fire Service.  The 
course uses fire fighter drills to highlight relevant personal 
and community safety topics including home safety, water 
safety and road safety.  The hands on experience of working 
with operational firefighters and their equipment boosts 
young people and enables them to realise their own 

capabilities by challenging themselves both physically and mentally.  Often these courses are truly 
inspirational and have lasting positive impacts on those that attend and go a long way to forming 
positive bonds between uniformed services and our youth communities.  
  
 
 
 

Music Matters, Animation and Frist Aid projects offer a varied range of activities 
in more of an indoor environment. They provide a good alternative to our more 
adventurous outdoor activities and it is important to the Splash team that we 
continue to run a varied programme with activities that appeal to a wide 
audience.  Music Matters and Animation use computer technology to create 
individual and group pieces.  Again team work, communication and social skills 
are the focus of these sessions.   
 
In addition our Fun First Aid sessions offer an 

educational, life skill opportunity to learn the basics of first aid in a fun, 
memorable and engaging way.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

 
Roaring Rugby is a 2 day workshop which incorporates the basics of 
Rugby, but also focusses on transferable skills such as ball control, 
boundaries, patience, team work, celebration and communication.  
Designed to accommodate all levels of skill and experience these 
workshops have previously uncovered true sporting talent which has 
empowered and motivated young people to a point where they are 
happy for Splash to signpost them to local sports clubs where they 
can be part of regular youth engagement provision. 

 
 
 

 
Case Studies 
 

Young Person A 
Having 4 older siblings can be great fun, but when one of them has ADHD and one has undiagnosed 
mental health issues life can be very intense.  Add to that the unexpected death of a parent and the 
intensity and emotional stress increases.  This stress can become too much and a young person finds 
it hard to cope; this is often the cause of negative behaviours at school.  A day out with Splash 
releases some of that stress, just for a few hours and injects some positivity into a young person’s 
life.  The opportunity to make new friends, learn new skills and go to new places really lifts a young 
person and begins to help build their confidence and self-esteem. Regular attendance at Splash 
embeds that confidence and those skills and enables a young person to have something to look 
forward when life at school and at home can be a struggle. 

 

Young Person B 

Young person B was referred to Splash aged 13.  B has Special Educational Needs (SEN) which had 

meant B struggled to develop effective social skills and make and keep friends which had affected 

B’s confidence and self-esteem.  B has attended 12 Splash activities ranging from Forestry fun, to 

more challenging survival camps and most recently Fun First Aid.  B’s SEN has caused B some 

frustrations in the past and Splash has provided B with a positive environment and support to 

develop new skills, meet new people and gradually learn to form new relationships and recognise 

good behaviours.  This has all impacted on B’s confidence levels and boosted self-esteem. The 

2015/16 High Sherriff invited nominations for a Splash Achievement award and B received 

nominations from several Splash staff.  B is a pleasure to be around and has now become a positive 

role model for their younger sister who was previously allowing B’s behaviours to affect her 

attendance at school.  Now a much more confident young person B is embracing a peer-mentoring 

role on future Splash activities where they will be able to assist activity facilitators and support other 

young people to fully engage. 

Page 28



 

Young Person C 

C was referred to Splash as they are on the Autistic spectrum and have ADHD, C has a SEN statement 

and is Dyslexic. C’s family have faced several complex challenges over recent years and this has 

created confidence issues for C and their parents.  C had low school attendance due to personal 

issues which had further affected self-esteem and the development of social and academic skills.  

Initially C’s Mum was very nervous about letting C attend Splash, we worked with the family prior to 

group work sessions to ensure they were confident and that C was able to fully engage. 

Since attending Splash activities Mum has fedback to the Splash team about the positive impact on 

the whole family unit.  Mum has never seen C so animated when telling other family members about 

their days at Splash.  She says she has never seen C so enthusiastic and happy about anything 

before.  From Mum’s perspective she too has benefited from Splash as she has realised that C is an 

individual and is growing up and needs more independence.   

Mum and other family members recognise a massive increase in C’s confidence and self-esteem 

since attending Splash sessions.  They have also seen a development in their emotional maturity and 

acceptance of certain personal factors.  

C took part in our pilot ASDAN accredited award scheme and fulfilled all physical and personal 

challenges that they set.  The presentation of the certificate on completion of the course marked a 

personal milestone for this young person. 

 

Feedback received 

 She loved it. When she got into our car she burst into tears as she was sad it was over. She 
said she never missed us as she was too busy having fun and she now wants to work on 
boats - A Parent 

 “M” said this (attending Splash) was the highlight of his year -  A Referring Agent 

 “L” thinks the days are "awesome" I think that he gains self-confidence and self-esteem 
through attending Splash activities and I'm reassured by the friendliness & professional 
attitude the staff have always demonstrated towards both “L” and myself.  Fantastic! - A 
Parent 

 Splash is something just for “J”. He feels special because he is able to go. It is away from 
school, family and friends and people that know his family background but he knows that he 
is among children that may have similar issues. He has always enjoyed the activities and 
really benefits from them in many ways - A Parent 

 He is disengaging with all other agencies except Splash.  It is important that he continues to 
attend Splash or he will become even more isolated-  A Foster Parent 

 This is such a great service for young people - A Volunteer 

 

Page 29





N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
p

ro
je

ct
 d

ay
s 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 in

 q
u

o
te

P
la

ce
s

 F
ac

ili
ta

to
rs

 

 P
re

m
is

es
 

 M
at

e
ri

al
s/

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 

 W
el

fa
re

 R
ef

re
sh

m
e

n
ts

 

et
c 

 T
ra

ve
l a

n
d

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

 Y
o

u
th

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 W
o

rk
er

 

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

 &
 

ad
m

in
, r

ef
er

ra
ls

/ 

n
o

m
in

at
io

n
s,

 

sa
fe

gu
ar

d
in

g,
 h

ea
lt

h
 &

 

sa
fe

ty
, m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g 
&

 

ev
al

u
at

io
n

  
 O

ve
rh

ea
d

s 
- 

M
an

ag
em

e
n

t,
 H

R
, 

fi
n

an
ce

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, o
ff

ic
e 

co
st

s 
@

1
0

%
 

 T
o

ta
l p

ro
je

ct
 c

o
st

 

M
at

ch
 F

u
n

d
in

g

R
em

ai
n

d
er

Forestry Day 1 12  £   406  £   -    £    -    £  20  £         100  £       76  £                  250  £          85  £      937  £       250  £     687 
Catch it Cook it Eat it 1 12  £   350  £   -    £    -    £  20  £         100  £       76  £                  250  £          80  £      876  £       250  £     626 
Wet n Wild 1 12  £   350  £   -    £    -    £  20  £         100  £       76  £                  250  £          80  £      876  £       250  £     626 

Salamander (Fire Service) 5 12  £       -    £   -    £  20  £  20  £         100  £     430  £                  250  £          82  £      902  £       250  £     652 

Music Matters 1 15  £   370  £  80  £  60  £  20  £         100  £       67  £                  250  £          95  £   1,041  £       250  £     791 
Animation 1 15  £   300  £  80  £    -    £  20  £         100  £       67  £                  250  £          82  £      898  £       250  £     648 
High Ropes 1 12  £   350  £   -    £    -    £  20  £         100  £       76  £                  250  £          80  £      876  £       250  £     626 
Roaring Rugby 2 18  £   650  £   -    £    -    £  40  £         200  £     152  £                  250  £        129  £   1,421  £       250  £ 1,171 
Multi Sports 1 12  £   250  £  80  £    -    £  20  £         100  £       67  £                  250  £          77  £      844  £       250  £     594 
First Aid 1 12  £   250  £  80  £  25  £  20  £         100  £       67  £                  250  £          79  £      871  £       250  £     621 
Mountain Biking 1 10  £   350  £   -    £100  £  20  £         100  £       76  £                  250  £          90  £      986  £       250  £     736 
TOTAL 2016 17 16 142  £3,626  £320  £205  £240  £      1,200  £ 1,229  £              2,750  £        957  £ 10,527  £    2,750  £ 7,777 

P
age 31





TIDWORTH COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP (CATG)

NOTES OF THE TIDWORTH COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP (CATG) 
MEETING HELD ON 24 OCTOBER 2016 AT CONFERENCE ROOM, TIDWORTH 
LEISURE CENTRE, NADDER ROAD, TIDWORTH, SP9 7QN.

2 Note Tracker

Please refer to the attached Note Tracker.

If you have any questions about the attached Note Tracker please contact:
 Gareth Rogers 

direct line: 01225 713384 
e-mail: gareth.rogers@wiltshire.gov.uk

Page 33

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

Item Update Actions and recommendations Who

1. Attendees and apologies

Present: Cllr M Connolly (Chair), Mr G Rogers (WC), Cllr C Williams, 
Cllr C Howard, Major P Kelly (Garrison), Mr A Cole (WC), Mr B 
Jarrett, Cllr H Jones (TTC) and Mr I Blair-Pilling (NPC). 

Apologies: PC B Lennane, PC L Wileman, Col S Lawton 
(Garrison), Mr D Harbottle (EPC) and Mr A Pickernell (TCAP).

2. Notes of last meeting

Minutes of previous minutes were noted.

3. Financial Position

2016-17 allocation will remain at £11,757.00.

Available spend for 16/17 is £16,320.17

The financial position was noted.

P
age 3

M
inute Item

 2
N

O
T

 F
O

R
 P

U
B

LIC
A

T
IO

N

P
age 35



COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

4. Top 5 Priority Schemes

a) Issue 4393

Tidworth - Kennet Road

There is an informal crossing 
in Kennet Road at its junction 
with Bourne Road. However 
there is no dropped kerb on 
either side of the road for 
disabled or people with prams.

All work has been completed. However, MC has received 
reports of displaced parking issues. TTC has agreed to a 
review of waiting restrictions in the area. MC has emailed 
Aster to write to residents asking them park in their 
allocated car parks.  

5. Other Priority schemes

a) Somme Road Cyclepath The introduction of the Street lighting was delayed until 03/10.

Formal opening of the path being organised by the DIO, 
date to be confirmed (anticpated 1st Week Nov).

MC stated that Cllr Williams and he had asked for the puffin 
crossing as part of the married quarters development in 
Ludgershall be provided at the Wellington Academy to be 
provided earlier than the s106 states as concerns about 
students crossing the road had been received. The Group 
agreed and MC to email the Group’s support to the appropriate 
channels.  

MC to email WC to register the 
Groups support for the puffin 
crossing to be provided earlier 
than the s106 states.

6. New Requests / Issues - None

P
age 4

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 P
U

B
LIC

A
T

IO
N

P
age 36



COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

a) Issue 4739

Station Road Tidworth

Speeding Concerns & Request 
for Traffic Calming

Issue with speeding. This is army personnel prodominantly during the 
day and boy racers civillians during the late evening night. My partner 
woke me at 6 am this morning to tell me there were blue lights 
outside our house and a car in the hedge The chevron sign has been 
hit several times and sits at an angle. Lamp posts have been moved 
they’ve been hit so many times. The footpath sign was moved to an 
invisible location as was always getting knocked down the kerb has 
many many scuffs and scratches its been hit so many times. Cars in 
the hedge six foot up on three occassions I’m aware off. I’ve closed 
the road many times due to ice accidents or whatever reason needed 
Please do something someone is going to get killed soon. Many 
people use the track opposite my house to walk there dogs. They 
have to cross on the corner where traffic is already at 35 40 mph 
thats after having exited a 20mph limit 3400 yards down the road.

Issue has been sent to PC to outline if there is support for 
issue.

Metrocount request has been sent.

Collision Database records no Personal Injury Collision in the 
preceeding 3 year period (to end June 16).

MC to review the site and report 
back.

b) Issue 4741

Station Road Tidworth

Request for additional Street 
Lighting

Poor street lighting between (SP9 7NS) top of Station Road, Tidworth 
and Kennet Road.

Has the Town Council considered issue? CATG to consider 
whether there is a need / proiritise.

MC to review the site and report 
back.

c) Issue 4907

Sidbury Circular, Tidworth

Request for 

Motorbikes using footpath 7 behind Sidbury Circular Road in order to 
get to the Londis store next to Zouch parade.

Issue has been sent to PC to outline if there is support for 
issue.

No further action required. MC to 
inform requester.

Issue to be closed

P
age 5

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 P
U

B
LIC

A
T

IO
N

P
age 37



COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

Nick Cowen (ROW) advised that a barrier would be ineffective 
as there were several points bikes could join and leave the 
path. He also believed this to be an intermittent issue and 
something that should be reported to the police with 
registration numbers and timings of when bikes use the path.

8. Other items

a) Freight Strategy Cabinet Member report issued outline the 2016/17 Priorities.
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1135

Tidworth nominations ranked as (out of 36) –

16. A345 Enford to Durrington
21. A345 Butt Street, Ludgershall

Group will be asked for nominations for 2017/18 in the near 
future.

Noted by the Group.

b) Perham to Tidworth Cycle Path MC has met with representatives from DIO & Rights of Way 
Officers to discuss and DIO have indicated willingness to 
dedicate land.

S106 funding needs to be spent by Sep 17.  Group agreed that 
up to £8K should be spent on designing a foot/cycle and foot 
path on the dotted route provided on the map. 

MC to seek AB approval for 
funding and GR to arrange the 
design work to be undertaken.

7. AOB

a) MC updated the group on the following:

DIO application for a roundabout to replace the two mini 

P
age 6

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 P
U

B
LIC

A
T

IO
N

P
age 38

https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1135


COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

roundabouts on the A338 in Tidworth has been submitted. The 
new roundabout on the A338 South of the town now in place 
and lighting to be completed in the next few weeks. The 
upgrade of the zebra crossing to a puffin crossing outside of 
the post office is near completion. There are issues with the 
Ludgershall Road roundabout, the link road and lighting to be 
resolved between WC and Persimmon.

b)

HJ asked that a replacement school warning sign be provided 
on the approach to Wellington Academy from Tidworth be 
provided. AC advised there is no funding. The Group agreed to 
fund a new sign at a cost of approximately £200. 

MC to seek AB approval for 
funding. 

c)

PK raised the issue of the lack of white lines and “cats eyes” on 
the Bulford ranges road.  AC to speak to Amesbury AB to try 
and raise the issue with highways as this Group had already 
raised this issue without success due to a lack of funding being 
available. HJ also stated that this should be a higher priority 
with 4000 personnel and dependents coming to the area soon 
who do not know the dangers of this road.

d)
CW had been approached about parking obstructing St James’ 
Street, Ludgershall when there are events on at the church.  
GR advised that the church could put out cones to prevent this.

e)
CW stated that LTC had received a petition about speeding on 
the A342 in Faberstown. Police had referred it back to the 
Town Council. A metrocount has been requested. GR to arrange for a metrocount.

f) I B-P raised speeding issues on the A345 in Netheravon. The 
PC is putting together a scheme for consideration by CATG. 
GR advised that the plans should be with the Group by the end 
of Jan so that the Group can consider them at its next meeting.

P
age 7

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 P
U

B
LIC

A
T

IO
N

P
age 39



COMMUNITY AREA TRANSPORT GROUP ACTION / NOTES LOG

Tidworth Community Area Transport Group 

Highways Officer – Gareth Rogers

1. Environmental & Community  Implications
1.1. Environmental and community implications were considered by the CATG during their deliberations.  The funding of projects will 

contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of environmental, social and community wellbeing in the community area, the extent 
and specifics of which will be dependent upon the individual project.

2. Financial Implications
2.1. All decisions must fall within the Highways funding allocated to Tidworth Area Board.
2.2. If funding is allocated in line with CATG recommendations outlined in this report, and all relevant 3rd party contributions are confirmed, 

Tidworth Area Board will have a remaining Highways funding balance of £0

3. Legal Implications
3.1. There are no specific legal implications related to this report.

4. HR Implications
4.1. There are no specific HR implications related to this report.

5. Equality and Inclusion Implications
5.1 The schemes recommended to the Area Board will improve road safety for all users of the highway.

6. Safeguarding implications 

CH advised that metrocout sites in both Collingbourne Ducis 
and Kingston had been agreed.

8. Date of Next Meeting: 27th February 2017 

P
age 8

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 P
U

B
LIC

A
T

IO
N

P
age 40



 

Report to Tidworth Area Board 

Date of Meeting 14/11/2016 

Title of Report Community Area Grant funding 

Purpose of the report: 
To consider the applications for funding listed below  

Applicant Amount requested 

Applicant: Tidworth Community Area Partnership Health 
& Social Care Group 
Project Title: Tidworth Defibrillator 
 
View full application 
  

£900.00 

Applicant: The Nest 
Project Title: Sensory Resources 
 
View full application 
  

£1360.00 

Applicant: Collingbourne Toddler Group 
Project Title: Collingbourne Toddler Group Resources 
 
View full application 
  

£988.59 

Applicant: Kennet Friends 
Project Title: Kennet Friends Reiki and Art Classes 
 
View full application 
  

£1000.00 

1. Background 
Area Boards have authority to approve Area Grants under powers delegated to 
them. Under the Scheme of Delegation Area Boards must adhere to the Area Board 
Grants Guidance 
 
The funding criteria and application forms are available on the council’s website.  

2. Main Considerations 
2.1. Councillors will need to be satisfied that funding awarded in the 2015/2016 year 
is made to projects that can realistically proceed within a year of it being awarded. 
 
2.2. Councillors must ensure that the distribution of funding is in accordance with the 
Scheme of Delegation to Area Boards. 

Page 41

Agenda Item 11

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1728
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2047
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2106
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2117
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/community-area-grants-criteria-2015-16-april.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/community-area-grants-criteria-2015-16-april.pdf
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/council/areaboards/areaboardscommunitygrantsscheme.htm


 
2.3. Councillors will need to be satisfied that the applications meet the Community 
Area Board grants criteria.  

3. Environmental & Community Implications 
Grant Funding will contribute to the continuance and/or improvement of cultural, 
social and community activity and wellbeing in the community area, the extent of 
which will be dependent upon the individual project.  

4. Financial Implications 
Financial provision had been made to cover this expenditure.  

5. Legal Implications 
There are no specific legal implications related to this report.  

6. Human Resources Implications 
There are no specific human resources implications related to this report.  

7. Equality and Inclusion Implications 
Community Area Boards must fully consider the equality impacts of their decisions in 
order to meet the Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty. 
 
Community Area Grants will give local community and voluntary groups, Town and 
Parish Council’s equal opportunity to receive funding towards community based 
projects and schemes, where they meet the funding criteria.  

8. Safeguarding Implications 
The Area Board has ensured that the necessary policies and procedures are in place 
to safeguard children, young people and vulnerable adults.  

9. Applications for consideration  

Application ID Applicant 
Project 
Proposal 

Requested 

1728 

Tidworth Community Area 
Partnership Health & Wellbing 
Group 

Tidworth 
Defibrillator 

£900.00 

Project Description: 
Procurement and installation of a Defibrillator at Tidworth Community Centre  
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 
Following a Cardiac Arrest the chance of survival decreases by 23% per minute. It 
is therefore very important medical treatment starts as soon as possible. The UK 
Resuscitation Council suggests an AED should be available wherever medical 
treatment is more than 5 minutes away. 
  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

Page 42

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=1728


Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

2047 The Nest Sensory Resources £1360.00 

Project Description: 
Resources are needed for the children that attend our setting which are specialised 
for their own specific needs. We have 3 children who are autistic and require 
resources to help their development. The children learn lots using their senses 
which we would like to expand on this area. We have a room we can convert into a 
sensory room with bubble machines fibre optics and lights. This is turn will help 
future families and children. Also we have a high number of children who have 
speech and language needs which we would require more resources to help their 
speech and communication. The grant would buy talk tins light board with words 
picture cards and much more.We are finding more and more the children that are 
coming into the area have lots of additional needs. We want to provide and be an 
inclusive setting to all children for now and the future.  
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 
CEM contacted Emma Scammell, Wiltshire Council Child Care Officer for feedback 
on grant. Emma provided this statement: 
The Nest has grown steadily since opening in May 2015, currently they have an 
even split between HM Forces families and civilian families attending from the 
surrounding Tidworth community. The Nest staffing team works tirelessly with the 
families and children to provide a service that meets all of their unique needs and 
on many occasions have gone that extra mile without question. 
The Nest has applied for funding for resources to specifically support 3 children 
with specific needs and children with speech and language difficulties. The 
proposed development of a multi-sensory environment with the resources can 
improve the increase of thought, intelligence and social skills. The resources along 
with the multi-sensory environment will be a safe, quiet place to allow children 
using it to explore and interact without risk. This in turn will benefit all of the 
children currently attending the provision with or without additional needs and the 
subsequent children who follow. 
  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

2106 

Collingbourne Toddler 
Group 

Collingbourne Toddler 
Group Resources 

£988.59 

Project Description: 
We are a rural community toddler group and since the start of the new school term 
have seen many of our older children head off to school. As a group we encourage 
young families to come along and join us for a morning of play where we offer 
mums, dads, & carers a friendly atmosphere to play and chat. We offer advice to 
new mums or just a friendly social gathering. A lot of the resources we have are 
getting old and we are in need of replacements. We are also looking to increase 
our small world play and natural resources.  
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 

Page 43

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2047
http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2106


The Tidworth Area Board voted that Play provision for under 13s  
as one of its main JSA priorities under the children and young people heading. 
This project will help achieve that aim. 
 

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

Application ID Applicant Project Proposal Requested 

2117 Kennet Friends 
Kennet Friends Reiki and Art 
Classes 

£1000.00 

Project Description: 
We are applying for money to help fund courses for our members. Our clients are 
dealing with long term and significant mental and sometimes physical illnesses. 
Living in a very rural area also they are often extremely isolated. Our day centre 
provides a safe and welcoming haven twice a week. We would also like to add two 
courses Reiki and Art. These therapeutic and pleasant activities give rise to 
valuable social interaction and enjoyment in lives which are often very bleak and 
isolated. 
  
Input from Community Engagement Manager: 
This project was referred to the Health & Wellbeing Group who gave it their 
approval. 
  

Proposal 
That the Area Board determines the application. 

 

No unpublished documents have been relied upon in the preparation of this report 
 
Report Author: 
Marc Read 
Community Engagement Manager 
01722 434557 
marc.read@wiltshire.gov.uk  

Page 44

http://services.wiltshire.gov.uk/areaboardgrants/grant_detail.php?gid=2117
mailto:marc.read@wiltshire.gov.uk


 

Grant Applications for Tidworth on 14/11/2016  

ID Grant Type Project Title Applicant 
Amount 

Required 

2047 
Community 

Area Grant 
Sensory Resources The Nest £1360.00 

2106 
Community 

Area Grant 

Collingbourne Toddler 

Group Resources 

Collingbourne Toddler 

Group 
£988.59 

2117 
Community 

Area Grant 

Kennet Friends Reiki and 

Art Classes 
Kennet Friends £1000.00 

 

ID Grant Type Project Title Applicant 
Amount 

Required 

2047 
Community 

Area Grant 
Sensory Resources The Nest £1360.00 

Submitted: 29/07/2016 15:15:29 

ID: 2047 

Current Status: Application Appraisal 

To be considered at this meeting:  
tbc contact Community Area Manager  

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Community Area Grant  

2. Amount of funding required?  
£501 - £5000  

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?  
No  

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept 

5. Project title? 
Sensory Resources  

6. Project summary: 
Resources are needed for the children that attend our setting which are specialised for their 

Page 45



own specific needs. We have 3 children who are autistic and require resources to help their 

development. The children learn lots using their senses which we would like to expand on 

this area. We have a room we can convert into a sensory room with bubble machines fibre 

optics and lights. This is turn will help future families and children. Also we have a high 

number of children who have speech and language needs which we would require more 

resources to help their speech and communication. The grant would buy talk tins light board 

with words picture cards and much more.We are finding more and more the children that are 

coming into the area have lots of additional needs. We want to provide and be an inclusive 

setting to all children for now and the future.  

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? 
Tidworth  

Electoral Division  
Tidworth  

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place? 
SP97FP  

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: 
Inclusion, diversity and community spirit 

Sport, play and recreation 

 

If Other (please specify) 

10. Finance:  

10a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 
08/2016  

Total Income: 
£145939.00  

Total Expenditure: 
£204939.00  

Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£58999.00  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£0.00  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 
We have only been open a year so dont have any reserves to use. We have been raising 

money in our setting and currently have 220.00. This is amazing but a long way off making a 

Page 46



significant difference to lives of our children.  

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:    

10b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £2720.00    

Total required from Area Board £1360.00  
 

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

Sensory den with 

bubble tube and 

fibre optics 

1600.00 
fundraising- in 

the nursery 
yes  360.00 

Sensory toys 100.00 

Fundraising in 

the Autumn 

term 
 

1000.00 

Interactive Mood 

Lights 
900.00 

   

Talking 

TinsCommunication 

Resources 

120.00 
   

Total £2720     £1360 

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 

financial year?  
No  

 

12. If so, which Area Boards? 
Tidworth 

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 

your local community? 
The children of Tidworth that attend our setting and when we have open days all children 

from Tidworth are able to freely use the equipment.  

14. How will you monitor this? 
Publish open days for the wider community.  

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 

you continue to fund it? 
NA  

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project? 

Page 47



No  

17. DECLARATION  

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 

to inspect upon request: 

Quotes: 
yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 

for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 

above) 

Accounts: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts  

Constitution: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc. 

Policies and procedures: 
yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 

as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 

Safety and Environmental assessments. 

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 

be applicable): 
yes I will make available on request evidence of ownership of buildings/land 

And finally... 
yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 

activities specified.  

 

2106 
Community 

Area Grant 

Collingbourne Toddler 

Group Resources 

Collingbourne Toddler 

Group 
£988.59 

Submitted: 27/09/2016 10:26:39 

ID: 2106 

Current Status: Application Appraisal 

To be considered at this meeting:  
tbc contact Community Area Manager  

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Community Area Grant  

2. Amount of funding required?  
£0 - £500  

Page 48



3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?  
No  

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept 

5. Project title? 
Collingbourne Toddler Group Resources  

6. Project summary: 
We are a rural community toddler group and since the start of the new school term have seen 

many of our older children head off to school. As a group we encourage young families to 

come along and join us for a morning of play where we offer mumsdadscarers a friendly 

atmosphere to play and chat.We offer advice to new mums or just a friendly social gathering. 

A lot of the resources we have are getting old and we are in need of replacements. We are 

also looking to increase our small world play and natural resources.  

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? 
Tidworth  

Electoral Division  
The Collingbournes and Netheravon  

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place? 
SN8 3UH  

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: 
Children & Young People 

 

If Other (please specify) 

10. Finance:  

10a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 

Total Income: 
£  

Total Expenditure: 
£  

Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£  

Page 49



Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:   yes 

10b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £988.59    

Total required from Area Board £988.59  
 

Expenditure 

(Itemised 

expenditure) 

£ 

Income 

(Itemised 

income) 

Tick if income 

confirmed 
£ 

New Resources 988.59 
   

Total £988.59     £0 

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 

financial year?  
No  

 

12. If so, which Area Boards? 
Tidworth 

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 

your local community? 
All the young children and families that attend our Monday morning sessions - new and 

inviting resources will help us increase attendee numbers and secure the sustainability of our 

group.  

14. How will you monitor this? 
Attendance register and feedback from mumsdadscarers  

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 

you continue to fund it? 
We are hoping to increase attendees and build a reserve from entrance fees  

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project? 

17. DECLARATION  

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 

to inspect upon request: 

Quotes: 
yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 

for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 

Page 50



above) 

Constitution: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc. 

Policies and procedures: 
yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 

as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 

Safety and Environmental assessments. 

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 

be applicable): 

And finally... 
yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 

activities specified.  

 

2117 
Community 

Area Grant 

Kennet Friends Reiki and 

Art Classes 
Kennet Friends £1000.00 

Submitted: 05/10/2016 10:21:04 

ID: 2117 

Current Status: Application Appraisal 

To be considered at this meeting:  
tbc contact Community Area Manager  

1. Which type of grant are you applying for?  
Community Area Grant  

2. Amount of funding required?  
£0 - £500  

3. Are you applying on behalf of a Parish Council?  
No  

4. If yes, please state why this project cannot be funded from the Parish Precept 

5. Project title? 
Kennet Friends Reiki and Art Classes  

6. Project summary: 
We are applying for money to help fund courses for our members. Our clients are dealing 

with long term and significant mental and sometimes physical illnesses. Living in a very rural 

area also they are often extremely isolated. Our day centre provides a safe and welcoming 

haven twice a week. We would also like to add two courses Reiki and Art. These therapeutic 

and pleasant activities give rise to valuable social interaction and enjoyment in lives which 

Page 51



are often very bleak and isloated.  

7. Which Area Board are you applying to? 
Tidworth  

Electoral Division  
Ludgershall and Perham Down  

8. What is the Post Code of where the project is taking place? 
SP11 9QW  

9. Please tell us which theme(s) your project supports: 
Inclusion, diversity and community spirit 

 

If Other (please specify) 

10. Finance:  

10a. Your Organisation's Finance:  

Your latest accounts: 
03/2016  

Total Income: 
£33107.00  

Total Expenditure: 
£33966.00  

Surplus/Deficit for the year: 
£-859.00  

Free reserves currently held: 

(money not committed to other projects/operating costs) 
£28862.00  

Why can't you fund this project from your reserves: 
Our main running costs are staff wages transport and rent which together cost us over 

30000.00 in 2015- 2016. Should Wiltshire Council our main funder stop our funding at any 

time we could not continue but would need our reserves to provide redundancy for our staff 

and wind down the centre as gently as possible.  

We are a small community group and do not have annual accounts or it is our first year:    

10b. Project Finance:  

Total Project cost £1000.00    

Total required from Area Board £1000.00  
 

Expenditure £ Income Tick if income £ 

Page 52



(Itemised 

expenditure) 

(Itemised 

income) 

confirmed 

Instructor 20X 

18weeks Reiki 
360.00 

   

Instructor Art 

60x6 
600.00 

   

Art Materials 40.00 
   

Total £1000     £0 

11. Have you or do you intend to apply for a grant from another area board within this 

financial year?  
No  

 

12. If so, which Area Boards? 

13. Please tell us WHO will benefit and HOW they will benefit from your project benefit 

your local community? 
Kennet Friends provides a safe welcoming and friendly environment for people with 

longterm and significant mental health illnesses sometimes complicated with physical 

problems. It runs two days a week and its members are referred to us through GP 

professionals and healthcare services. It is a support group and a lifeline for people who are 

marginalised within society isolated and often disorientated and fearful. Because of the cuts 

in mental health services Kennet Friends is literally the only place where they can get 

consistent ongoing support to improve their mental well being. We are there to manage crisis 

episodes which if ignored can lead to a sharp decline in that persons mental health condition 

and can lead to damaging and sometimes life-threatening situations. We also try to offer 

therapeutic and social activities which give rise to social interaction and peer support and can 

be organised by the members themselves with the help of the staff. These take the form of 

outings and classes. Our present membership of 25 will benefit enormously if classes can be 

set up. Reiki is superb for healing and calming and Art in its absorbing creativity and work 

with others is hugely enjoyed and can take members outside themselves and their problems. 

In the past when funding was more easily available Kennet friends ran for three days a week 

and one day was devoted entirely to classes some which were designed to prepare our 

members for a return to the everyday world. We can no longer afford to pay for a third day 

but to be able to run at least these two classes will benefit everyone enormously.  

14. How will you monitor this? 
Our Manager Georgina Banyard who with the members has requested these classes will be 

there to record numbers taking part and the general response and success.  

15. If your project will continue after the Wiltshire Council funding runs out, how will 

you continue to fund it? 
We will be applying for funding for further classes in the future from yourselves or from 

Charitable Foundations.  

16. Is there anything else you think we should know about the project? 

Page 53



17. DECLARATION  

Supporting information - Please confirm that the following documents will be available 

to inspect upon request: 

Quotes: 
yes I will make available on request 1 quote for individual project costs over £500 & 2 quotes 

for project costs over £1000 (Individual project costs are listed in the expenditure section 

above) 

Accounts: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's latest accounts  

Constitution: 
yes I will make available on request the organisation's Constitution/Terms of Reference etc. 

Policies and procedures: 
yes I will make available on request the necessary and relevant policies and procedures such 

as Child Protection, Safeguarding Adults, Public Liability Insurance, Access audit, Health & 

Safety and Environmental assessments. 

Other supporting information (Tick where appropriate, for some project these will not 

be applicable): 

And finally... 
yes The information on this form is correct, that any award received will be spent on the 

activities specified.  

 

 

 

Page 54



 
 Reference no 

 

 
 

Log no 
 

For office use 
 

 
 

1 

Area Board Projects and Councillor Led Initiatives 
Application Form 2016/2017 

To be completed by the Wiltshire Councillor leading on the project 
Please ensure that you have read the Funding Criteria before completing this form 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL SECTIONS TO ENSURE THAT YOUR APPLICATION CAN BE CONSIDERED 

1. Contact Details 
Area Board Name  Tidworth 

Your Name  Chris Williams 

Contact number  e-mail  Christopher.williams@wiltshire.gov.uk 

2. The project 
Project Title/Name  Tidworth Community Area Healthy Schools Project 

Please tell us about 
the project /activity 
you want to 
organise/deliver and 
why? 

 
Important: This section 
is limited to 900 
characters only 
(inclusive of spaces). 

The aim of this project is for 7 schools within the Tidworth Community Area to achieve at least 
Bronze level on the Wiltshire Healthy Schools programme. Data presented to the Area Board 
in November 2015 by Public Health highlighted that 25.5% of children in Reception Year are 
obese/ overweight compared to the Wiltshire average of 21.2% and Year 6, 33% are obese/ 
overweight compared to the Wiltshire average of 29.6%. The most efficient and effective way 
of tackling this issue is through working with the schools directly.  
 
The Healthy Schools programme actively promotes learning and healthy lifestyle choices for 
children and supports the schools capacity to deliver effective and sustainable interventions 
for all children 
 
The ambition of this project is that money is provided upfront to deliver a long term sustainable 
programme where the schools are supporting each other to develop a best practice model 

 

 
Where is this project taking place? 

Across the Tidworth Community Area 

When will the project take place?  From January 2017 onwards 

What evidence is there that this 
project/activity needs to take place/be 
funded by the area board? 

 
Evidence presented to the Area Board in November 2015 by Public Health 
showing an issue with obesity/ overweight children in the Tidworth 
Community Area.  

Page 55



 

How will the local community benefit? Working with all the schools within our community area will provide the most 
effective way of engaging with local young people. Children will benefit from 
the practices that each school brings in through the healthy schools 
programme.  
 
The project would support the schools to work collaboratively with the Area 
Board and each other creating long-term sustainable relationships that can 
be utilised for future collaborative working.         
 

Does this project link to a current 
Community Issue? (if so, please give 
reference number as well as a brief 
description) 

n/a 

Does this project link to the Community 
Plan or local priorities? 
(if so, please provide details) 

Yes, linked in with improving the environment and play facilities  

Is this project supported by the Local 
Youth Network or Community Area 
Transport Group?  

n/a 

What is the desired outcome/s of this project?  For all Tidworth Community Area schools to be engaged with the 
Healthy Schools programme and attain at least the Bronze award 

. Who will be responsible for managing this project? Marc Read, Community Engagement Manager 

3. Funding 
 
What will be the total cost of the project? 

 
£3528 

How much funding are you applying for? 
Please note that only capital funding is 
available  

 
£3528 

 
If you are expecting to receive any other 
funding for your project, please give 
details 

Source of Funding Amount 
Applied For 

Amount 
Received 

n/a 
 

 

n/a   

Please give the name of the organisation 
and bank account name (but not the 
number) your grant will be paid in to.  

 
n/a 

4. Declaration – I confirm that… 
 

 X  The information on this form is correct and that any grant received will be spent on the     

activities specified 

 

 X Any form of licence, insurance or other approval for this project will be in place before the start of the 

project outlined in this application 

Name: Chris Williams 
 
Position in organisation: Wiltshire Councillor – Ludgershall & Perham Down 

Date: 3/10/2016 

Please return your completed application to the appropriate Area Board Locality Team  (see section 3) 

x 

Page 56



 
 Reference no 

 

 
 

Log no 
 

For office use 
 

 
 

1 

Area Board Projects and Councillor Led Initiatives 
Application Form 2016/2017 

To be completed by the Wiltshire Councillor leading on the project 
Please ensure that you have read the Funding Criteria before completing this form 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL SECTIONS TO ENSURE THAT YOUR APPLICATION CAN BE CONSIDERED 

1. Contact Details 
Area Board Name  Tidworth 

Your Name  Chris Williams 

Contact number  e-mail  Christopher.williams@wiltshire.gov.uk 

2. The project 
Project Title/Name  Tidworth & Ludgershall Men’s Shed Project 

Please tell us about 
the project /activity 
you want to 
organise/deliver and 
why? 

 
Important: This section 
is limited to 900 
characters only 
(inclusive of spaces). 

The aim of this project is to provide a base for the newly formed Tidworth & Ludgershall Men’s 
Shed. 

A Men’s Shed provides a communal place of skills sharing, informal learning, of individual 
pursuits & community projects, of purpose, achievement & social interaction. Men’s Sheds are 
social groups that are self-governed, have their own constitution, their own income and their 
own meeting place. How each shed looks and the activities that take place in them depend 
entirely on the skills and interests of the group. Shedders are gardeners, artists, collectors, 
story-tellers, amateur radio enthusiasts, train spotters, model makers…..Anyone is welcome! 

 
Where is this project taking place? 

 The proposed workshop will be based at Ludgershall Fire Station but will be 
open to the wider community area. 

When will the project take place?  The Tidworth & Ludgershall Men’s Shed formed a committee in April 2016 
and it is hoped that the project will last indefinitely. 

What evidence is there that this 
project/activity needs to take place/be 
funded by the area board? 

 
A recent Age UK survey showed that more than one million people aged 
over 65 are often or always lonely, with two-fifths saying that their main 
form of company is the television. 
 

Page 57



 

How will the local community benefit? Any member of the community can benefit but specifically those who are 
feeling lonely, undervalued or just lacking the facility to work on a practical 
project. 
The aim is not to create a formal training facility but an environment that 
encourages social interaction, and problem solving. It is hoped that we will 
be fully inclusive, encouraging any age, gender, and ability level to become 
involved. It is thought that people who have been in the armed forces will be 
a unique group to our area who would specifically benefit from the 
camaraderie that can be generated by a group of like minded people. 
The shedders can then work in the community providing practical help and 
assistance. In this way it is possible to create a cycle which can become self 
supporting with some services or products generating an income. We have 
already undertaken our first project at the GUL Outdoor Therapy Centre, 
building a wildlife hide over the summer of 2016, and have lined up work 
with Tidworth Town Football Club next. 
 
 

Does this project link to a current 
Community Issue? (if so, please give 
reference number as well as a brief 
description) 

n/a 

Does this project link to the Community 
Plan or local priorities? 
(if so, please provide details) 

Yes, linked with increasing levels of participation and improving inclusivity. 

 

Is this project supported by the Local 
Youth Network or Community Area 
Transport Group?  

n/a 

What is the desired outcome/s of this project? For Tidworth & Ludgershall Men’s Shed to have a workshop so that 
the group can expand. 
. Who will be responsible for managing this project? Tidworth & Ludgershall Men’s Shed Committee 

3. Funding 
 
What will be the total cost of the project? 

 
£13,842 

How much funding are you applying for? 
Please note that only capital funding is 
available  

 
£5000 

 
If you are expecting to receive any other 
funding for your project, please give 
details 

Source of Funding Amount 
Applied For 

Amount 
Received 

Tidworth Town Council 
£4421  

Ludgershall Town Council   £4421  

Please give the name of the organisation 
and bank account name (but not the 
number) your grant will be paid in to.  

 
Tidworth & Ludgershall Men’s Shed 

4. Declaration – I confirm that… 

 

 X  The information on this form is correct and that any grant received will be spent on the     

activities specified 

 

 X Any form of licence, insurance or other approval for this project will be in place before the start of the 

project outlined in this application 

Name: Chris Williams 
 
Position in organisation: Wiltshire Councillor – Ludgershall & Perham Down 

Date: 26/09/2016 

Please return your completed application to the appropriate Area Board Locality Team  (see section 3) 

x 

Page 58



 
 Reference no 

 

 
 

Log no 
 

For office use 
 

 
 

1 

Area Board Projects and Councillor Led Initiatives 
Application Form 2016/2017 

To be completed by the Wiltshire Councillor leading on the project 
Please ensure that you have read the Funding Criteria before completing this form 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL SECTIONS TO ENSURE THAT YOUR APPLICATION CAN BE CONSIDERED 

1. Contact Details 
Area Board Name  Tidworth 

Your Name  Chris Williams 

Contact number  e-mail  Christopher.williams@wiltshire.gov.uk 

2. The project 
Project Title/Name  TCAP Awards 

Please tell us about 
the project /activity 
you want to 
organise/deliver and 
why? 

 
Important: This section 
is limited to 900 
characters only 
(inclusive of spaces). 

The request for funding is to provide certificates, frames & trophy’s for the TCAP Community 
Awards. 

The Community Awards event is all about giving public recognition to those who volunteer 
their own time to help others without seeking financial rewards or recompense for doing so. 
Anyone living within the Tidworth Community Area, Bulford Camp and the neighbouring parish 
of Shipton Bellinger is eligible for nomination.  

 

 
Where is this project taking place? 

 Wellington Academy, Tidworth 

When will the project take place?  2017 

What evidence is there that this 
project/activity needs to take place/be 
funded by the area board? 

The ability of people to work willingly together for the betterment of their 
community and themselves is invaluable and plays an important part in 
Wiltshire Council’s vision to create stronger and more resilient communities. 
 

Page 59



 

How will the local community benefit? By celebrating the work of Tidworth Community Area’s volunteers it is hoped 
that others will be encourage to step forward and get involved in their 
community. 
 
 

Does this project link to a current 
Community Issue? (if so, please give 
reference number as well as a brief 
description) 

n/a 

Does this project link to the Community 
Plan or local priorities? 
(if so, please provide details) 

Yes, linked with increasing levels of participation and improving inclusivity. 

 

Is this project supported by the Local 
Youth Network or Community Area 
Transport Group?  

n/a 

What is the desired outcome/s of this project? Increase the number of volunteers in our community area.  

. 
Who will be responsible for managing this project? TCAP 

3. Funding 
 
What will be the total cost of the project? 

 
£900 

How much funding are you applying for? 
Please note that only capital funding is 
available  

 
£900 

 
If you are expecting to receive any other 
funding for your project, please give 
details 

Source of Funding Amount 
Applied For 

Amount 
Received 

 
 

 

   

Please give the name of the organisation 
and bank account name (but not the 
number) your grant will be paid in to.  

 
Tidworth Community Area Partnership (TCAP) 

4. Declaration – I confirm that… 

 

 X  The information on this form is correct and that any grant received will be spent on the     

activities specified 

 

 X Any form of licence, insurance or other approval for this project will be in place before the start of the 

project outlined in this application 

Name: Chris Williams 
 
Position in organisation: Wiltshire Councillor – Ludgershall & Perham Down 

Date: 18/10/2016 

Please return your completed application to the appropriate Area Board Locality Team  (see section 3) 

x 

Page 60



 
 Reference no 

 

 
 

Log no 
 

For office use 
 

 
 

1 

Area Board Projects and Councillor Led Initiatives 
Application Form 2016/2017 

To be completed by the Wiltshire Councillor leading on the project 
Please ensure that you have read the Funding Criteria before completing this form 

PLEASE COMPLETE ALL SECTIONS TO ENSURE THAT YOUR APPLICATION CAN BE CONSIDERED 

1. Contact Details 
Area Board Name  Tidworth 

Your Name  Chris Williams 

Contact number  e-mail  Christopher.williams@wiltshire.gov.uk 

2. The project 
Project Title/Name   TCAP School’s Christmas Concert 

Please tell us about 
the project /activity 
you want to 
organise/deliver and 
why? 

 
Important: This section 
is limited to 900 
characters only 
(inclusive of spaces). 

 
The project is to support TCAP with the delivery of the School Christmas Concert 2016. Six 
school's within the Tidworth Community Area attend the concert, some 700 children. 
 
The project supports The Military Civilian Integration Programme as well as contributing to the 
community engagement ambitions contained within the community plan and JSA for the 
Tidworth Community Area.It also contributes to the recruitment and retention of volunteers for 
community projects. The event is sponsored by several local organisations makng it a real 
community event. 

 
 
Where is this project taking place? 

 Garrison Theatre, Tidworth 

When will the project take place?  December 2016 

What evidence is there that this 
project/activity needs to take place/be 
funded by the area board? 

The event is now a major part of the cultural offer in Tidworth Community 
Area and important in bringing military and civilian communities together. 

Page 61



 

How will the local community benefit? The project supports the Military & Civilian Integration Programme by 
providing the opportunity for large numbers of military and civilian families to 
come together and celebrate Christmas. 
 

Does this project link to a current 
Community Issue? (if so, please give 
reference number as well as a brief 
description) 

A key priority from the JSA was to develop more cultural activities and 
events 

Does this project link to the Community 
Plan or local priorities? 
(if so, please provide details) 

As above 

 

Is this project supported by the Local 
Youth Network or Community Area 
Transport Group?  

n/a 

What is the desired outcome/s of this project?  Delivery of key elements of the communityplan, an engaged 
community, links with town and parish councils 
. Who will be responsible for managing this project? TCAP 

3. Funding 
 
What will be the total cost of the project? 

 
£500 

How much funding are you applying for? 
Please note that only capital funding is 
available  

 
£500 

 
If you are expecting to receive any other 
funding for your project, please give 
details 

Source of Funding Amount 
Applied For 

Amount 
Received 

 
 

 

   

Please give the name of the organisation 
and bank account name (but not the 
number) your grant will be paid in to.  

 
Tidworth Community Area Partnership (TCAP) 

4. Declaration – I confirm that… 

 

 X  The information on this form is correct and that any grant received will be spent on the     

activities specified 

 

 X Any form of licence, insurance or other approval for this project will be in place before the start of the 

project outlined in this application 

Name: Chris Williams 
 
Position in organisation: Wiltshire Councillor – Ludgershall & Perham Down 

Date: 18/10/2016 

Please return your completed application to the appropriate Area Board Locality Team  (see section 3) 

x 

Page 62



 

Update for Tidworth Area Board 
 

 

 

Name of Parish/Town 
Council 
 

DWFRS 

Date of Area Board Meeting 
 

14 November 2016 

 

 

Headlines/Key successes 
 

 

 Combination between Dorset & Wiltshire 

 

 

 Recruiting of operational staff 
 

 

 Transformational programme 

 

 
Projects  
 

 

 Bringing policies together 

 

 

 Looking at wholetime & retained duty systems 

 

 

 Preparing for next year budgets 

 

 
Forthcoming events/Diary dates 
 

 

 Safe drive 

 

 

 Salamander 

 

 

 Recruitment evenings 

 
 
Signed: Tom Brolan – District Commander – Amesbury,Pewsey & Ludgershall 

Date:    28/10/2016 
 

     

Page 63

Agenda Item 12





The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you 

 

November 2016 

MIUs to align opening hours 

Wiltshire’s Health Select Committee have acknowledged support for a proposal by Wiltshire Health 
and Care, in partnership with Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group to align the opening hours of 
Trowbridge and Chippenham Minor Injuries Units from 7am-11pm, seven days a week. 
 
Minor Injuries Units (MIU) offer a facility for treating injuries that are not serious, providing a real 
alternative and a more suitable setting for the care and treatment of less serious injuries to local 
Accident and Emergency departments. 
 
Patient attendance overnight at Wiltshire’s two minor injuries units is extremely low and it has been 
difficult to ensure the MIUs can be staffed properly, due a shortage of staff with the right training who 
are able treat minor injuries and deliver safe patient care.  Additionally, many of those people who 
attend during the night time present with minor illness, meaning that they are referred to the 24 hours 
Out of Hours GP service. 
 
Over a 91 day period from January – March 2016 there were average overnight attendances of 2.3 at 
Trowbridge MIU and 0.6 at Chippenham MIU. The impact of this has been greatest at Trowbridge MIU, 
where there have also recently been 28 overnight closures due to lack of appropriate staffing.   
 
Douglas Blair, Managing Director of Wiltshire Health and Care said: “To make the sure we can staff 
the unit in the day time when most minor injuries occur, it’s essential that we review the operational 
effectiveness of MIUs in Trowbridge and Chippenham at night time.   Continuity of the existing 
arrangements at Trowbridge and Chippenham MIUs is not sustainable if we’re to provide an effective 
service that meets the current and future needs of local communities. That means being able to 
properly staff our units during the day time when people most require the services they provide”. 
 
Tracey Cox, Interim Accountable Officer at Wiltshire CCG said: “The revised opening times for 
Trowbridge and Chippenham MIUs will ensure there are no more unplanned closures at night time, will 
make better use of nurse resource during the day when attendances to the MIUs are at their highest, 
and means clearer communication for the public as to when the MIUs are open”. 
 
Wiltshire Health and Care is committed to reinvesting any savings generated back into community 
services.  
 
15,500 missed GP Practice appointments across Wiltshire in three months 

An equivalent of 516 days of general practitioner time was lost during July –September 2016 because 
more than 15,500 GP, nurse and healthcare assistant appointments were missed across Wiltshire’s 55 
GP Practices. 
 
Known as ‘Did Not Attend’ appointments they have a huge impact on the health economy, prevent 
other patients from being seen and waste the time of ever-stretched doctors and nurses.  
 
Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group is urging patients to take a few minutes to cancel their 
appointments if they are no longer required, or if they are unable to attend. Practices will then be able 
to offer those slots to other patients who require them and help to reduce appointment waiting times.  
 
 
 

Page 65



The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you 

Dr Peter Jenkins, Chair of Wiltshire CCG said: “Every missed appointment it is a missed opportunity 
for practices to see another patient. Between July and September that means practices could have 
seen another 15,500 patients, which is staggering. Simply by cancelling unwanted appointments, even 
if it is a few minutes before, it means that other patients have an opportunity to be seen more quickly 
and perhaps see their own GP. We were aware that most practices experience several DNAs each 
day, but the volumes we are seeing are quite frankly, shocking.” 
 
On average a GP will conduct 30 appointments per day and based on the total number of missed 
appointments for July – September 2016, the equivalent of 516 days of general practitioner time has 
been lost. 
 
Dr Richard Sandford-Hill, a GP at Market Lavington Surgery explains on behalf of Wiltshire Practices: 
“As doctors, we understand that people lead busy lives, that plans often change and quite often many 
people feel better by the time of their pre-booked appointment, so needing to change or cancel it is not 
a problem – please just remember to let your surgery know. 
 
“At a time when NHS resources are stretched to the hilt, it’s really important that people understand 
the impact they have if they simply do not turn up. Everyone has responsibility to look after the NHS – 
it’s tax payers money after all – and we urge Wiltshire people to cancel when they don’t need the 
appointment so that those most in need are able to be seen more quickly”.  
 
Stay well this Winter campaign 

As the days get colder and bugs and illnesses become more common, it’s important to take care of 
your health. Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group are part of the Stay Well This Winter national 
campaign to raise awareness of what you can do to stay healthy this winter and what services are 
available if you need additional help.   
 
The national Stay Well This Winter campaign started on 2 October 2016 and will run until the end of 
March 2017 and will also be providing advice to those with long-term health conditions, over 65s, 
pregnant women and parents of under-sevens. 
 
Get the jab, get Flu Safe 
 
NHS Wiltshire CCG is encouraging people to have their flu jab.  Flu is a highly contagious infection 
that anyone can catch, but it can be very serious for some.  For most people flu is a relatively mild 
illness from which they recover within a week or two – yet every year people, especially those at risk, 
become seriously ill because they don’t get their free flu jab.   
 
Flu is not the same as a cold and it affects people of all ages. If you or someone you care for is in any 

of the at-risk groups listed below you can get a free flu jab from your GP. 

 everyone aged 65 years and over 

 all pregnant women irrespective of their stage of pregnancy 

 Adults and children over six months with long term heart, lung, kidney, liver or neurological 
conditions 

 people with diabetes  

 anyone who has a reduced immunity because of an illness or medical condition 

 people with asthma  

 anyone in long-stay residential care 

 carers of disabled or elderly people and healthcare workers that are in direct contact with 
patients 

 

Get the best protection for yourself and your family by being flu free this winter and book your 
appointment today. 

Page 66



The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you 

 

Staying Healthy this winter 
 
NHS Wiltshire CCG is urging people to keep warm and well this winter, especially as the nights are 
starting to draw in and the temperature is dropping. 
 
The cold can have serious consequences as it can increase the risk of strokes and heart attacks as 
well as causing people to catch colds and flu.  Wrapping up warm, keeping the heating turned up, 
making sure you have enough winter food supplies and keeping a well-stocked medical cabinet in 
case you do catch a cold or flu are all sensible steps to take. 
 
What to keep in your medicine cabinet 
 
 

 
 

Page 67



The Right Healthcare, for you, with you, near you 

In Wiltshire, there are numerous ways to get healthcare advice and treatment.  Consider all the options 
available to help you make the right decision about where to go if you need treatment. 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 68



 

 

                   Area Board Update - November 2016 

Healthwatch Wiltshire is a local independent organisation which exists to speak up for people on health 
and care. If you have used a service recently then we would like to hear from you. We use what people 
tell us when we meet with the commissioners and providers of services to make sure that they take 
account of your views and experiences. 

Hospital discharge in Wiltshire 

We have listened to people about their experiences when they were discharged from hospital or when 
their care was transferred between different care settings.  For most people, the system is working 
well and they are happy with their discharge.  However, people also told us about delays, poor 
communication, a lack of involvement of patients and their unpaid carers, and accessing social care at 
home after a stay in hospital.  We have shared the feedback we have gathered with the health and 
care partnership for Wiltshire’s Better Care Plan.  The partnership brings together organisations to 
improve ‘the system’.  Our report will shortly be published and available download from our website 
www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk/reports-publications/.  Our next aim is to produce information about 
discharge or transfers of care for local people so they know what they should expect. 

Feedback on Your Care Your Support Wiltshire (YCYSW) 

We saw a statistic from The Social Care Institute for Excellence recently stating that over 80% of adults 
are online, but fewer than 2% reported a ‘digitally enabled transaction’ with the NHS in 2015. This 
month we have been out and about meeting people to improve that statistic for Social Care in 
Wiltshire.  We have presented training and provided workshops about YCYSW to: 

 a local Alzheimer’s café 

 a health & wellbeing group 

 carers’ and older people’s 

champions 

 Parent Carers 

 Safer Salisbury groups and over 55’s.  

We have signposted to articles about the mental capacity act, support to live independently, Easy Read 
versions of our most used pages, the telecare guide, and the screencast we made about how to use the 
site.  We listened to Carers who said it was hard to sign up online for a Carers Emergency Card (CEC).  
We talked to local charity Carers Support Wiltshire who said it is quicker to process an electronic form.  
We signed up ourselves for a CEC to make sure the system was working, and discovered the page made 
some assumptions about what you do to successfully complete a CEC form.  We have made the 
instructions about how to sign in to YCYSW, and how to access the carers emergency card form clearer 
and easier to follow. We haven’t left out that you can still use paper and pen though. 

 

Contact us: 

Tel 01225 434218 

info@healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk 

www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk 

www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk 

To apply for a carers emergency 
card online, create a profile on 
YCYSW, sign in, and find the steps 
to follow at 
www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.
org.uk/health-and-social-care/
carers-emergency-card.aspx. 

In the words of Mrs Doyle from the 
TV show Father Ted “Go on Go on 
Go on: go online.” 

Photo source: http://www.morganjones.co.uk/2015/02/hmrc-drop-100-penalty/ 

Page 69

http://www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk/reports-publications/
http://www.scie.org.uk/publications/reports/report73-technology-changing-lives.asp
https://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/directory/providerdetails.aspx?olmproviderid=148034
https://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/health-and-social-care/parent-carers.aspx
https://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/content/distributionform.aspx?id=19994
https://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/health-and-social-care/support-to-live-independently.aspx
https://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/easyreadmenu.aspx
https://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/guides/guides.aspx
https://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/health-and-social-care/carers-in-wiltshire.aspx
mailto:info@healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk
http://www.healthwatchwiltshire.co.uk
http://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/home/
https://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/health-and-social-care/carers-emergency-card.aspx
https://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/health-and-social-care/carers-emergency-card.aspx
https://www.yourcareyoursupportwiltshire.org.uk/health-and-social-care/carers-emergency-card.aspx




 

Update for Tidworth Area Board 
 

 

 

Name of Parish/Town 
Council 
 

Everleigh Parish Council 

Date of Area Board Meeting 
 

14th November 2016 

 

 

Headlines/Key successes  
 

 

 Saturday 5th November: The Everleigh Village Bonfire and Fireworks Night took place 

on Jubilee Field, Everleigh playground area at 6.30pm.   

 
 

 
Projects  
 

 

 

 WW1 Commemoration Stone – Everleigh Bus Shelter, by the Crown.  The 

inauguration ceremony was conducted on Saturday 12th November 2016 at 1130hrs; the 

Garrison Commander from Tidworth, Col Steve Lawton and his wife, Claire, were our 

principal guests. 

 

 
Forthcoming events/Diary dates 2016 
 

 

 

 Saturday 10th December:  Village Carol Service (St Peter’s Church 11am) and Curry 

Lunch (Goa Balti 1230pm) 
 

 
Signed: Denis Bottomley, Chairman Everleigh Parish Council 

Date:   28th October 2016 
 

     

Page 71





Army Basing Briefing for the Amesbury, Pewsey, Tidworth and Warminster 
Area Boards - Updated 20 October 2016 

 
 

Background 
 

The government’s Army Basing announcement in March 2013 advised of around 4,300 extra Service   

personnel moving to Wiltshire by the end of the decade.  They will be accompanied by their families, 

bringing the total number of additional people estimated to be moving to the area to 7,600. These plans 

will require additional levels of infrastructure and services to be provided by Wiltshire Council. The MOD has 

since reviewed the figures as the relocations draw nearer and now expect the net addition of Service 

personnel to total 4,000.  Accordingly the expected net increase in population will be a little over 7,000.   

 
October 2016 Update 

 
Planning Applications 

 

Planning permission for all MOD development within its camps and for Service Family Accommodation (SFA) 

which will be sited adjacent to them have been granted.  The DIO has appointed Lovell - part of the Morgan 

Sindall Group as their preferred bidder to construct all the SFA at Larkhill, Ludgershall and Bulford.  

 
Hill (Housebuilders) are currently building 322 SFA units in Tidworth for the Defence Infrastructure 

Organisation.   Although managed under the Army Basing Programme they are not strictly an Army Basing 

requirement, but are needed to rationalise MOD housing across the Salisbury Plain area.  They will allow 

MOD to release various temporary lettings in the area. 

 
School Infrastructure 

Planning for reprovision and expansion of St Michael’s school is proceeding well, with the aim of submitting 

full planning permission towards the end of this calendar year and the construction site could be in 

operation as early as April 2017.  A byway (Durrington 29) will require to be relocated as it currently lies on 

the site where the school is to be built.  The local town council has been consulted on this proposal and 

action for a court hearing to grant the change is in hand. 

Planning for the other schools funded by the MOD under the s106 agreement is commencing shortly. 

Community Infrastructure  
 

Negotiations with Ludgershall Town Council, the MOD and Lovell are underway to provide a new community 

(health and wellbeing) facility.  The aim is to make this available in early 2020, when the SFA build 

programme will have completed and all the houses are occupied.   

Somme Road Cycle Path – Open for Use         

The new cycle path has been in use since the surface was completed in early summer.  The final touches 

(lighting and landscaping) are due to be completed by the end of October and it is hoped to arrange an 

official opening in early November.  Further cycle paths are being incorporated into the SFA builds to enable 

safe and healthy transport options for Service personnel and their families, and to minimise car journeys. 

Page 73



Official Return of 5 RIFLES  

5th Battalion The Rifles (5 RIFLES) signalled the completion of their move from Paderborn in Germany to 

Bulford by Sounding the Retreat on 26th September.   The Band and Bugles of The Rifles gave their guests a 

rousing performance of both modern and traditional tunes concluding with ‘Sunset (bugle call)’.  The salute 

was taken by both General Sir Nick Carter, Chief of the General Staff, and the Lord Lieutenant of Wiltshire, 

Mrs Sarah Troughton.  

Other distinguished guests included Baroness Scott of Bybrook, OBE, Leader of Wiltshire Council and the 

Mayor of Salisbury, Derek Brown and many senior retired officers from the regiment.  Also attending were 

soldiers and officers of the Battalion with family and friends. 

Completion of the LGA Peer Review 
 

Between 26th and 29th September, the Local Government Association reviewed how well Wiltshire Council 

has managed the impact of the ABP in its planning for new infrastructure and service delivery for the 

additional 7,200 military community settling in Wiltshire by 2020.  It also examined its stakeholder 

engagement.  The peer review was extremely positive and the team felt Wiltshire Council’s management of 

the programme should be regarded as an example of best practice and shared with other local authorities in 

due course.  Wiltshire Council acknowledges the enthusiastic input from a variety of partners including the 

emergency services, schools, NHS, the MOD and chairs of the area boards. 

 
Kiwi School Official Opening 
 

The extension of Kiwi School in Bulford was officially opened on 10th October.  The ceremony was attended 

by special guest Richard Jones from this year's Britain's Got Talent.  This is the first piece of infrastructure 

that is funded by the MOD as part of the section 106 agreement for the SFA build. 

 

Future Activity 
 

 Late 2016:   The  ‘behind the wire’ construction programme begins  

 Mid-late 2017:   The SFA construction programme is expected to commence  

 Summer 2018:  St Michael’s Primary school build is due to complete  

 By August 2019:   Additional school capacity required will be completed  

 Summer 2019:   Majority of Service personnel are due to move to Salisbury Plain. 
 

For more information visit:  http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/mci-new.htm 

 

 

Page 74

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/communityandliving/mci-new.htm


 

Table 1 – Net Additional Population by Unit Location based on Army Basing Programme 
Planning Assumptions. Children numbers are based on Army National Ratio of 1.3 children per 
Military family 

 
 

Location SLA Pop 

SFA Population 

Total  

Military  Spouses Children 

Larkhill 1,297 698 698 908 3,601 

Bulford 414 223 223 290 1,150 

Tidworth  317 169 169 219 874 

Perham Down (Ludgershall) 414 223 223 290 1,150 

Upavon 126 78 78 102 384 

Total 2,568 1,391 1,391 1,809 7,159 

 
(Source: MOD Revision to Masterplan issued 27 Nov 2015) 
 
 
Table 2 – Army Basing Programme Service Family Accommodation (SFA) to be provided by 
location: 
 
 

Location SFA units 

 

Notes 

Larkhill 444  

Bulford 227 
This includes 36 units that will replace existing SFA, so the net 

new requirement is 191 for the Army Basing Programme. 

Ludgershall 246  

Tidworth 0  

The MOD is acquiring 100 units from a commercial 

development in Tidworth - (Riverbourne Fields to meet the 

Army Basing Programme requirements). 

Upavon 0  

Total 
917 Taking into account the above two notes , the net Army 

Basing requirement is for 981 SFA homes. 

 

(Source: MOD revision to Masterplan issued 27 Nov 2015) 

 

 

Page 75




	Agenda
	1 Chairman's Welcome, Introductions and Announcements
	4 Minutes
	5 Wiltshire Police update
	9 Community Engagement Manager - updates including Local Youth Network & Youth Funding
	Procurement Report for Area Boards 14.11.16
	Splash Overview for Tidworth Area Board
	Tidworth Area Board proposal costings 2016 17

	10 Community Area Transport Group update
	Minutes
	2 Note Tracker

	11 Community Area Grants
	areaboard_grant_papers_report
	Councillor Led Initiative - Healthy Schools
	Councillor Led Initiative - Men's Shed
	Councillor Led Initiative - TCAP Awards
	Councillor Led Initiative - TCAP School Concert

	12 Updates from Town and Parish Councils, the Police, the Army, NHS and other Partners
	CCG November
	Healthwatch November
	TAB Update - Everleigh Parish Council Nov 16
	Army Rebasing update  Oct 16 final


